
      

 

The TEXAS SOUTHMOST COLLEGE FOUNDATION INC., Board of Directors will meet in person at Texas Southmost
College, Oliveira Student Services Center, Room 2 and 2A (2nd Floor), located at 1701 May Street, Brownsville, Texas
78520, and virtually via Zoom, commencing at 12:00 PM on Wednesday, October 16, 2024, to consider and act on the
following items: 

 
      

1. Call to Order   

 

2. Establish Quorum   

 

3. Consideration and possible action on the approval of the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of
August 28, 2024

 

4. Executive Committee   

 

a. Check Presentation to TSC Board of Trustees on October 17, 2024   

 

b. Chair Report   

 

c. Consideration and possible action on approval of TSC Foundation logo
 

5. Finance Committee   

 

a. Investment Report through August 31, 2024
 

6. Gala Committee   

 

a. Amethyst Gala Update   

 

7. CEO/ Staff Reports   

 

8. Announcement of Next Meetings/Events   

 

a. Executive Committee Meeting- November 20, 2024, at 12:00 pm   

 

b. Annual Board Meeting- December 18, 2024, at 12:00 pm   

 

9. Adjournment   

 

 



Consideration and possible
action on the approval of
the minutes of the Board of
Directors meeting of August
28, 2024

3



Texas Southmost College Foundation, Inc. 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

August 28, 2024 
 

Directors Present 
Roy De los Santos, Chair 
Adela Garza, Vice Chair  
Norma Hinojosa, Secretary 
Dr. Gustavo Stern, Treasurer 
Dr. Jesus Roberto Rodríguez, CEO 
Edward Bustos (via Zoom) 
Dr. Nellie Cantu 
Maru De La Paz (via Zoom) 
Edgar E. Garcia 
Dr. Norma Lopez-Harris 
Roel Rodríguez 
Nikhil Shah (via Zoom) 
 

 

Directors Absent  
Joey Camacho 
Delia Saenz 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Staff & Others Present 
Dr. Gisela Figueroa, TSC 
Dr. Stella Garcia, TSC 
Crystal Hite, TSC 
Chris Koeller, Principal 
Richard Mesquias, TSC 
Nilda Mora, TSC 
Ruben Pena, TSC 
Dr. David Plummer, TSC 
JoAnna C. Sarabia, TSC 
Vanessa Vasquez, TSC 
Luis Villarreal, TSC 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Roy De los Santos at 12:19pm. 
 
2. Establish a Quorum 
 

Chair De los Santos called on Dr. Stella Garcia to call roll and confirmed a quorum.  
 

Chair De los Santos noted three additions to the Foundation board are new TSC Board of 
Trustees appointments. In accordance with the Foundation bylaws, the officers of the TSC 
Board of Trustee also serve on the Foundation Board. Vice Chair Adela Garza, TSC Board 
Chair, remains on the Foundation Board. New additions include Mrs. Delia Saenz, TSC 
Board Vice Chair; Dr. Norma Lopez Harris, TSC Board Secretary; and Mr. Edgar Garcia, 
Trustee, who was appointed to the TSC Foundation as the TSC Board designee. Chair De 
los Santos welcomed the new members to the Board. 

 
3. Consideration and possible action on the approval of the minutes of the Board of 

Directors meeting of June 26, 2024  
 

Vice Chair Garza moved to approve the minutes from June 26, 2024, as presented. 
Secretary Hinojosa seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
4. Executive Committee 



 
a. Board Appointment to fill unexpired vacancy(ies) 

 
Chair De los Santos reported that the Executive Committee met to review a board 
member vacancy left by the resignation of Mrs. Andrea Gonzales. Mr. Joey Camacho 
submitted the resume of Mr. Jose Salazar for consideration to fill the vacancy. No 
other nominations were received, and those that know Mr. Salazar felt he would be a 
good addition to the board.  
 
Dr. Nellie Cantu moved to approve the recommendation of Mr. Jose Salazar to fill 
the unexpired vacancy. Mr.  Rodríguez seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 

 
b. Committee Appointments 

 
Chair De los Santos stated that he would like board members to serve on at least one 
committee. He asked that board members who are not already on a committee to 
contact him after the meeting to let him know on which committee(s) they would like 
to serve. 
 
Chair De los Santos encouraged members to join him in serving on the Mariachi 
Festival Committee. The Mariachi Festival Committee is seeking TSC Foundation Board 
members to serve, with support from TSC employees. The event is scheduled for April 
2025.  
 
The new Alumni Committee will be charged with developing the official Texas 
Southmost College Alumni Association. Dr. Lopez Harris and Mr.  Rodríguez 
volunteered to serve on the Alumni Committee.  
 
This item was for information only. No action was taken.  

 
c. Report on Matching Grant  

 
Chair De los Santos reminded the board that they had approved matching funds of 
$250,000 for two projects presented by Mr. Richard Mesquias at the April 2024 
meeting. He provided a quick update, in Mr. Mesquias’ absence, and reminded the 
Board that $200,000 would be designated as a match for a grant proposal submitted 
to the Rio South Texas Education Foundation (RSTEF). The total requested from RSTEF 
is $600,000, thus, Mr. Mesquias had approached two other organizations to provide 
the remaining $400,000 in matching funds.  

 
The item was for information only. No action was taken. 

 



5. Bylaws Committee 
 

a. Bylaws Update 
 

Chair De los Santos invited members to join the Bylaws Committee and said he plans 
to convene the committee to address board member terms.  

 
The item was for information only. No action was taken. 

 
6.  Finance Committee 

 
a. Consideration and possible action on the approval of the FY25 TSC Foundation 

Budget 
 

Chair De los Santos called on Dr. Stella Garcia to present the item. Dr. Garcia 
indicated that the budget has a new look and presents a more comprehensive view 
of the Foundation’s revenues and expenditures. She Dr. Garcia stated that she 
worked closely with the TSC Finance department and Budget Analyst to develop the 
proposed FY25 budget. In addition, the TSC Foundation accounts will transition to 
Quick Books from Colleague; however, both systems will operate concurrently 
during the transition.  

 
Dr. Garcia reviewed the projected revenue for each funding source for FY25. She 
also reviewed the proposed expenditures including scheduled fundraising events, 
Amethyst Gala and Mariachi Festival, as well as grant matching funds, scholarship 
awards, and Foundation operations. 

 
Dr. Nellie Cantu made a motion to approve the FY25 budget. The motion was 
seconded by Vice Chair Adela Garza seconded the motion and passed unanimously 

 
b.    Investment Report through June 30, 2024 
 

Chair De los Santos called on Mr. Chris Koeller to present the report. Mr. Koeller 
reviewed the investment report and stated that the market gains have been 
positive. The board engaged in a brief discussion of investment returns. 

 
The item was for information only. No action was taken. 

 
7. Gala Committee 

 
a. Amethyst Gala Update 
 

Chair De los Santos called on Dr. Stella Garcia to present the report. Dr. Garcia 
stated that the Gala Committee, consisting of Vice Chair Garza, Secretary Hinojosa, 



and Mr. Edward Bustos met on Monday August 26, 2024. CEO Rodríguez also joined 
the Committee. The committee discussed the gala invitation, decoration theme, and 
lapel pin. The committee also reported that they intend to organize a donor meet-
and-greet to invite confirmed sponsors, as well as potential sponsors/donors, to 
share information on the Foundation and encourage them to become a donor. 

 
The item was for information only. No action was taken. 

 
8. CEO/Staff Reports 

 
Chair De los Santos called upon Foundation CEO Rodríguez, to give his report. CEO 
Rodríguez thanked the Foundation Board for their commitment to the mission of the 
college and for their continued support of TSC student scholarships. Mr. Richard 
Mesquias provided an update on a donor visit to discuss planned giving. Dr. Garcia 
reported that the TSC soccer team was having a fundraiser at Cane’s, therefore, the 
lunch provided would support the team. The board engaged in a brief discussion of 
how the TSC Foundation might support TSC athletics in the future.  
  

The item was for information only. No action was taken. 
 
9. Announcement of Next Meetings 
 

a.   Executive Committee Meeting – September 25, 2024, at 12:00 pm 
b.   Regular Board Meeting—October 16, 2024, at 12:00 pm 

 
10. Adjournment 

 
Vice Chair Garza made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Secretary Hinojosa seconded 
the motion, which passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 1:51 pm. 

 
 
 
____________________________ 
Norma Hinojosa 
Secretary, TSC Foundation Board 



Consideration and possible
action on approval of TSC
Foundation logo

4c





"Proposed Options of Foundation Logo"



Investment Report through
August 31, 2024

5a





2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13





15



16



17


	Agenda
	AI 6868
	       ATT_Foundation Board of Directors Meeting Minutes June 26, 2024
	AI 6666
	       ATT_Current- TSCF Logo and TSC Seal Comparison
	       ATT_Proposed- TSCF Logo
	AI 6767
	       ATT_Investment Report through August 31, 2024

